August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 1 of 16

MINUTES
JOINT WORKSHOP

HILLSBOROUGH TOWN BOARD and PLANNING BOARD
Tuesday, August 28, 2007
7:00 PM, Hillsborough Town Barn

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Mayor Tom Stevens, Commissioners Frances
Dancy, Mike Gering, L. Eric Hallman, Evelyn Lloyand Brian Lowen.

PLANNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Matthew Farrelly, Tom Campanella,
Edna Ellis, Kathleen Faherty, Paul Newton, Dave Rgton, Neil Jones, and Toby Vandemark.

STAFF PRESENT: Town Manager Eric Peterson, Planning Directorddeet Hauth, Finance
Director Greg Siler, Public Works Supervisor Kemés, and Town Attorney Bob Hornik.

ITEM #1: Call to order of Town Board special meetirg.
Mayor Stevens called the special meeting to ortdérG3 p.m.,

Town Attorney Bob Hornik asked that a closed sessie added to the end of the agenda to
discuss potential litigation involving the proposesphalt plant.

Town Manager Eric Peterson asked that a closedosele added to update the Board on the
selection process for an Assistant Town Manager.

Commissioner Hallman clarified that issues not atiked could be added to closed sessions,
noting he remembered an incident in the past tlzet similar. Mayor Stevens said they would
consider that.

ITEM #2: Consider a motion to approve a waiver of he Competitive Bidding process as
authorized under G.S. 143-129(g) to purchase a Vaom Leaf Collection
Truck for $123,700 from Virginia Truck Center.

Mr. Peterson said they were utilizing the “piggykiabid process with the City of High Point

who had recently purchased similar equipment, amceshe Town was using High Point’s bid

the Town did not have to go through the formal jpidcess. He added that funds had already

been appropriated in the budget for the leaf cbbadruck.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Dancy, seconded byr@issioner Lloyd, the Board moved to
approve a waiver of the Competitive Bidding as atited under G.S. 143-129(g) to purchase a
vacuum leaf collection truck by a vote of 5-0. Thetion was declared passed.

ITEM #3: Consideration of a Resolution approving fnancing terms with Branch
Banking and Trust and purchase of a Leaf collectiodruck.

Finance Director Greg Siler stated they had sehbails to six banks for financing of the leaf

collection truck, and Branch Banking and Trust camwith the lowest bid. He said biannual

payments would be made.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 2 of 16

Upon a motion by Commissioner Lowen, seconded by@issioner Gering, the Board moved
to approve the financing terms with Branch Bankang Trust and purchase of a Leaf Collection
Truck by a vote of 5-0. The motion was declaresspd.

ITEM #4: Adjourn Town Board Special Meeting and Convene joint workshop with the
Planning Board.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Gering, secondeddoyi@issioner Hallman, the Board moved

to adjourn the special meeting and convene thé yaankshop with the Planning Board by a vote

of 5-0. The motion was declared passed.

ITEM #5: Discussion of Annexation/Zoning/Master Pla application from American
Asset Corporation regarding the development of th€ollins property and the
redevelopment of the Daniel Boone Village.

Mayor Stevens stated that if approved, this wowdlsignificant project for Hillsborough. He

outlined the process that would be used as noteth@magenda. He asked the Boards to keep

their discussion on top level issues that would/jgi® direction on the outcome of this project.

a. Brief comment by the applicant (5 minutes).
Joe Dye, representing American Asset Corporatiead ra brief statement that said American
Asset Corporation had a track record of bringingpgpessive projects to market, that
incorporated principles of urban design such asettcape, building placement, pedestrian and
vehicular interconnectivity, and open space as a®lkh balance and mixture of uses appropriate
and feasible for the market. He said if this projas approved, American Asset Corporation
would be involved in the Hillsborough community foany years to come.

Mr. Dye said they understood that this was a siggit undertaking for Hillsborough given the
central location of the property, the considerableestment of water and sewer capacity and
municipal services that would be necessary to hitiegproject to fruition, and the sheer size of
the project in relation to the existing communityHe said likewise, it was a substantial
undertaking for American Asset Corporation, whopased to make a significant investment in
land and infrastructure improvements and estalaliphoject that was financially successful and
also retained the charm of Hillsborough while cimiting positive revenue to the Town.

Mr. Dye stated this project would represent a $2fan investment in land and infrastructure
before the first cent was spent on development@ipiarcel of land. He said the land cost alone
was nearly double the land cost of Waterstone saiié that increased cost limited their ability to
contribute to the Town in the same way Waterstade ltbwever, they proposed to contribute
over $550,000 to the Town to address near-termaiire police capital needs as well as assist
with the cost of public improvements such as a waeer over the course of the development.
Additionally, he said, they had made provisionsdmchool site and affordable housing desired
by the community.

Mr. Dye said they had put together detailed plagmiacuments to describe the types of uses that
were planned in each section of the developmertheg with the constraints and controls that
would be used to assure quality development. ltkteay recognized that the Town preferred a
more detailed site plan for the project, but unfodtely that was difficult to do because they
were not at the point in the process where theyahader for each section of the development.
Mr. Dye said in addition to the commitments madehé&t stage of the planning process, they



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 3 of 16

recognized that they would need to come back toTthen with a detailed site plan for each
portion of the project as it was ready to be dgvetbas a part of the Special Use Permit process.

Mr. Dye said as in the past, they asked for thaided comments, and they would take those
comments and utilize them to determine the besttavayove forward.

b. Discussion of “likes,” “concerns,” and “must clanges” submitted to staff by board
members.
Margaret Hauth, Planning Director, provided an view of the responses received from some
of the Board members.

«  Strengths noted were: the option for live/work sinithe general opportunity of the
site, in that it was a great area for a relativddpse infill/mixed use development that
promoted walkability and transit; that the proposabign standards would help
address the potential monotony of the design; #redproposal was larger consistent
with the Churton Street Corridor Plan.

*  Project concerns were: the number of dwelling urfiteted by 3 responders);
recreation; connectivity to the rest of the Towme pace of the development, in that
the rapid pace might lead to a sameness or monaitnogs the design; the uses were
still too segregated and not mixed (implied vettroaing of the buildings); the new
Churton Street cross sections were not consistéht ttve Churton Street Corridor
Plan, in terms of the width of the median); trafificpacts (noted by 2 responders);
impacts to existing businesses; insufficient capace was provided; financial impact
to current residences and customers (noted by gomeers); and, impact on or the
use of water and sewer capacity.

Ms. Hauth suggested that now might be the timedtbta the project strengths and concerns list
before discussion continued.

Mayor Stevens said it appeared to him that theeptgyrovided not only infill development but
the potential for a residential connection for seuh and northern neighborhoods. Ms. Hauth
suggested adding that it provided a residentiaheotion from the north to the south. Mayor
Stevens said yes, in that it provided a consistency

Commissioner Lowen said one concern many had esguesvas the railroad crossing at
Highway 70 business center, and how to addresgafie impact.

Ms. Vandemark said a possible strength was thenpateupgrade in the appearance of an
entranceway to the Town. She said a concern wasather huge scale of the project, in its
overall size and scope.

Commissioner Gering said a concern was that the githnot address enough the transportation
elements identified in the Churton Street Corriglan, which had identified the Collins property
as a transit center with transit around it. Hel ghe notion that a train stop could be located
there and a Town Square that would incorporate@ctcreation and mixed use was one of the
most attractive elements of the Churton Street.pl@ommissioner Gering said this project did
not go far enough. Ms. Hauth said the strength theuld be that it did include transit, but the
concern was that it did not go as far as the ChuBtreet plan did in terms of transit and
connectivity. Commissioner Gering agreed.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 4 of 16

Mayor Stevens addressed a process question, ihelmiggested that the members keep a list of
guestions and they would periodically stop to déscilhose. The Boards agreed by consensus.

Mr. Peterson said the biggest concern for him vis@sappropriateness of the timing, with the
assimilation of Waterstone and other projects imdniin terms of the impacts on staff, the
budget, and capital needs.

Mr. Campanella stated there was an initiative byjesan Town to bring Amtrak back, and that

had generated a lot of interest. He said thereawvaesal likelihood that they would have some

sort of rail service in the future, and many woalgree that the area from Eurosports to the
Churton crossovers was one of the best potentalilans for a rail station. Mr. Campanella said
the timing of that was important, because it calidt the focal point of this project. He said no

one knew when that might happen, but it should dy@ kn mind. Mr. Campanella said that the

possibility of a future rail station should be adde the list.

Commissioner Lloyd reminded the Boards that thees & promised transit site at Hampton
Pointe. Ms. Ellis stated that if Amtrak came bazlHillsborough the station should be located
in West Hillsborough where it was originally. Sé&d if it was located at Eurosport the train
would block those people on the other side of taekis when at the station.

Town Attorney Bob Hornik asked Mr. Campanella haw &long the Amtrak discussion might
be, asking was it a possibility in two years ormiyeyears. Mr. Campanella said no one knew at
this point, only that interest was building. Mrydsaid a rail stop was a good idea, but the
location, the funding, and when it would happenldowt be predicted.

Mr. Farrelly said one of the challenges to thisjgecbwas that all of the users of each pod had
not yet been identified, making it difficult to mhace a more detailed site plan. He said they did
have large pieces designated for certain typessafiential, and even though that was not exact
they did have the number of planned units thatctbel tentatively laid out and illustrated on the
site plan, as well as the uses already identifistf. Dye said they had discussed that but after
the last meeting they believed it was better tot watil after tonight's meeting to produce a
mock up to show in more visual detail how the sitight be developed. Mr. Farrelly said the
mock up would be helpful in understanding the pesibenefits and to better define concerns.

It was suggested that Mr. Dye produce a “fly oveith boxes for the houses. Mr. Dye
responded he believed they could provide sometsimgdar to that.

Mr. Farrelly said he wanted to see not just anaaériit a snapshot of prototypical housing units
in each of the sections, with enough detail tolsme the streetscape might play out.

A concern was expressed related to the specifafithe Master Plan, in that they had not yet
seen a topographic map that addressed how evestrésts already there would look, as well as
where new streets might be located in terms ofdoggzhy. It was also important to know what
kinds of limits that placement might have on actdavelopment, since there was limited
opportunity to disapprove things they did not ldtehe SUP stage if it was not specifically dealt
with in the Master Plan.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 5 of 16

Mayor Stevens said it was incumbent on the appliaanwvell as the various advisory boards to
provide some of that specificity in the guidelinés, example if there was a civic area in each
section then the square footage should be specified

Commissioner Gering stated that one large scalggirbe was familiar with was Waterstone,
and he had to give a lot of credit to the develsp#rWaterstone for the degree to which they
“handheld” the Town Board in walking them throudle tvision of the project with concept plans
and narratives that provided a good mental image.

Commissioner Hallman stated the Town was in thegs® of revising the design guidelines and
ordinances, and asked if a Master Plan was ad@rtddhen the SUPs came in, would they be
considered under the new intervening design guidslthanges or under the ones in existence at
the time of the Master Plan approval. Mr. Horreésponded that depending on what conditions
of approval were placed on the Master Plan, itadagal either way. He said the developer would
prefer to be bound by today’s standards.

Ms. Ellis said a nearby jurisdiction was requirtigvelopers to present exact plans, and believed
Hillsborough should do the same.

Ms. Vandemark said the recreation and open spaceghout the development that was grouped
in one space was not appropriate, noting it shdaddin each neighborhood. She said the
neighborhoods were too blocked, noting that catisech to be isolated in that people who lived
in an apartment could not mix with people in siA@mily homes. She said that kind of mixing
was important to have. Ms. Vandemark said therd#fole housing percentage was next to
nothing given the number of total housing unitsilst needed to be looked at. Mr. Dye stated
they had talked at length with Robert Dowling wilrange Community Housing, and his
concern was the quality of the affordable homekerathan the number, noting that when you
were focusing on providing a certain percentageithmay mean the quality of the homes would
be lessened. Mr. Dye said that meant that rattear 20 three-bedroom homes you may end up
with 50 one-bedroom homes or studio apartmentsditehot offer family livability. He said
what he had discussed with Mr. Dowling was the i(piakrsus the quantity, where Habitat was
looking more at the total percentage.

Ms. Vandemark said she understood the argumeng@rttiree-bedroom homes were nice, but
there were many people who did not need three bemsand two baths but needed something
smaller. She said perhaps there should be a nakafable homes.

Commissioner Lowen said he did not disagree abdatdpersing the various types of housing
throughout the entire development, but it shouldnede clear that that was what everyone
wanted before they said that was the desire. [fkisdhe historic district, for instance, it was

clear that townhouses and apartments were not @astethey had to be clear if they were
saying that they wanted that in other parts of town

It was suggested that an equitable way of deterthi@enumber of affordable housing units that
should be provided would be to determine how maasevon the site at the time this project was
proposed, including those at the trailer park aadmground.

Mayor Stevens said he believed that had been detednto be approximately 30 families. He
stated the overall number of proposed affordablesimy units was small relative to the overall



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 6 of 16

proposed number of units, and agreed that numlmriéibe increased. Mayor Stevens stated
that they were already looking at 30 families thduld be displaced and that was not
insignificant, so that should be kept in mind.

Mayor Stevens said a strength was the green bgildisigns that had been incorporated into the
plan, and suggested that could be strengthenecbn8ky, he said, a concern was what had been
called the “sense of place” or sameness, for igstavhat was unique about this development
and how it would be different. Mayor Stevens dhiel concern was not only what kept it from
being the same but also what made it distinctivenfother mixed use developments.

Commissioner Lloyd said she had suggested thatrmlstrom the current site could be
recycled and used in the new development or otlaeep. She also suggested that solar energy
be used in some instances.

c. Discussion of staff synthesis plan created frorfmust changes” submitted by
board members.

Ms. Hauth provided an overview:

*  Number of dwelling units: reduce the total numbéruaits to 200 (noted by one
responder); and, reduce the total number of dwgllinits by 20%, to 1,036 (one
responder).

. Mixed the uses on a finer scale.

*  Create two or three nuclei of commercial or mixeg-areas within the residential areas

 Provide detailed street layout overlay on topogyaph assess suitability of
development and its potential impacts.

* Implement the Churton Street cross section witlDdodt median which allowed for
plantings as specified in the Churton Street plan.

. Expand the transit consideration to include thé Imae, including both existing and
future services.

*  Maintain the roundabout at the Orange Grove inttice.

« Demonstrate market impact on existing and planredneercial areas including the
downtown.

. Dedicate more and larger municipal uses and devgtepcial contributions and land
dedication that would remove the negative cash fmthe Town.

Ms. Hauth said staff had provided comments to axtdother issues that had been brought up:

¢ Commit at the Master Plan level to a LEED or Homaldgers Association system, or
some other substantive quantifiable method of suetée building practices.

* Create a financial impact package with no signiftaast impacts to the Town.

»  Dedication of the existing ballfield was not suiiict to meet standards.

» Dedication of the school site cannot wholly off§e® impact fee because it created a
zero sub gain to the school system.

» The Town’s preference was for the dedication of #ite to be to the Town, and the
Town would then work out an agreement with Orangar@y for joint uses on the site.

*  There should be age-diverse play areas dispersedgtiout the residential areas at a
rate of 1,000 square feet per dwelling unit. Someas could be combined if there was
an interest in providing larger play areas such pkgying field.

« That the areas must be developed, with improvementshe ground, by the pod
developer and either dedicated to the homeownsmxdion or the Town.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 7 of 16

. Facilities within residential pods must be avaialdo all the residents of the
development on the same fee basis.

e  Cap residential units a 730.

* Allow additional units as second or third floor lore/work units or density increases
within certain pods up to 120 units in return fame of the following: allow the
developer to increase one dwelling for each adahficdwelling unit of affordable
housing; allow the addition of second or third flamits in the non-residential area if
the developer would upgrade the standard to a LEEBome Buildings Association
level.

* Public areas linking all areas of the site showdpbovided; staff estimated that four
such areas would be needed and each should bdy@)§80 square feet.

Mr. Farrelly said the uniqueness of Daniel Boon#age had been mentioned, and one of his
fears was that having this large space developedasghort period of time would cause them to
loose that sense of uniqueness. He said one wagdress that was to get creative and think
about various signature pieces and places thatdamibuilt in the conceptual plan. Mr. Farrelly
said he did not know what that might be, but meradthings that could be signature pieces like
a public pool or fountain, an ice rink, or otheratigres that would attract people to come
together. He said such signature pieces werenatlsag they cared about community gathering
places, which was important for communities in gahe Mr. Farrelly said this development
would be so big and so central that such signatieees were needed.

Mayor Stevens stated there was a lot of noddinigeafds around the table, adding there were a
dozen different ways to do signature pieces. Hisaould take the form of an amphitheater, a
sculpture, big trees, or even related to some eflhildings currently in the Daniel Boone
Village.

Commissioner Gering stated one of the biggest néedshe Town was for a community
meeting place or performance center. It was meatidhat the loss of the Big Barn would add
to that need.

Mr. Farrelly said the developer had proposed a conity center, and whether it was integrated
as part of the school or not was a possibilitytifier uses the Big Barn had seen in the past.

Mr. Peterson said these were good ideas but thdyadleconomic drivers, so he believed they

were at a point where they needed to determinba$d economic drivers would make those

ideas possible or was the Town willing to bridge gap to make them possible. He explained
that more green space, more public parks, anchimssing units may cause the developer to say
he could not make them work financially, so thogestions needed to be asked.

Ms. Ellis said they could not lose sight of thdftcaproblems on Churton Street.

Commissioner Lowen asked if the estimates for mmubis. Hauth had described were based on
statistical data, and if the staff had determirtet those numbers were what they could support.
Commissioner said he was concerned that a drasticction in the number of units would cause
the developer to say he could not support it. N&uth stated that when laying it out the way
she had understood the Board wanted, that wasuimder of units she was coming up with, in
that they were more common Hillsborough densities.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 8 of 16

Mr. Peterson stated the project was still finamgiaiable at the 700 units they had used
originally.

Ms. Hauth described three scenarios using diagrams:

. First scenario: boundaries not changed; streetarktas proposed; black lines were
additional road connections; about 40 acres ofilreta former Daniel Boone site;
introducing an office or mixed-use component ontlen24 acres adjacent and up the
hill from that site; putting a multi-family compongefor 216 units in one location, at 12
units per acre; the lighter yellow was the singleily detached at 3.5 dwelling units
per acre; the orange was a total of 295 at mediensity, or 7 dwelling units per acre,
which could still be a detached or a townhome petidd acres in one location for a
mixed use; keeping the institutional and civic use#ts original location; producing
more of a pedestrian network; park areas; purplewrss were locations for possible
plazas or some other public area; and, a total dfdivelling units.

 Second scenario: transit option with bus stops andil component, with walkable
areas to allow movement from one type of trans@nother; parking to accommodate
drivers to the site to access the train; maintéespark and school site in the same
location but envisions civic use might move oubianother area; brown area contains
302 multi-family units at 12 units per acre; sinégenily units at 3.5 per acre, for a total
of 226 single-family units; 197 medium density; aoarcial on similar acreage of 40
acres of retail and 22 acres of office; and, d teasity of 725 dwelling units.

e Third scenario: total number of dwelling units @B4; leaves the commercial
component as proposed; introducing 264 multi-faraitjts at 12 units per acre; single-
family units at a closer proximity to the schodksiintroducing a commercial activity
on the north side; more indicates a more mediunsitienf 238 units; and, network of
connections are the same for all three scenaridis, p&destrian connections.

Mayor Stevens said all three of the plans were isterd with the “must do” guidelines as
suggested by staff. Ms. Hauth said as much ashpesges. Mayor Stevens said the guidelines
could specify different sizes of houses to creabeenof a mix, if that was what was wanted. Ms.
Hauth said at the SUP stage they had talked abwatiation of lot sizes in terms of lot width to
get that kind of differentiation.

Ms. Hauth stated that each scenario contained ésdor the HYAA on the flattest part of the
site. Responding to a question regarding whattdated a transit stop, Ms. Hauth stated that
there were many different types, but most typic@llwould be an enclosure that allowed for
protection from the weather, and would likely pae/irestrooms and space for a staff person, but
overall a small facility the provided access to ithiéline. She said in terms of other transigtth
would be bus transit and this site would not beligesituated for a bus transfer.

Mr. Remington said he liked the idea of a littlemaffice space as opposed to retail, noting it
appeared to him that it would be advantageousttacatand encourage more professional-type
offices.

Mr. Peterson said one comment by Orange Countytasoffice-institutional uses were good
buffers between residential areas, because wheaffibes were closed no one would be there,
making it more attractive than retail.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 9 of 16

Responding to a question regarding the feasikhity would have for the Town and what kind of
metric would be used to show that this plan woulstky Ms. Hauth said that other than the
number of dwelling units being in the ballpark ohat was analyzed with that first fiscal
analysis, which was reasonable positive for the Motkey had not conducted that level of
analysis. She said the question was whether otheoproject was financially viable, but from
the Town’s perspective would it generate enouglorme to offset the cost of acquiring the
property and building it.

Ms. Faherty asked how different was the 40 acre®wofmercial from the original proposal. Ms.
Hauth said the original proposal was 60 acresabat of that was substituted with office space.

Commissioner Gering stated they were assumingathatf that had to be built at once, adding
that 1100 units or even 700 dwelling units was &lsuoverwhelming to him. He said 1100 units
was 50% the size of Hillsborough residences nowd didl not know why it was needed.
Commissioner Gering asked what the compelling asntrwas for the Town that made building
the whole project at one time a positive propositidls. Hauth said perhaps it was time to move
into the next topic, which was what would happethi$ project was not built.

It was said that this was selling the Town’s renrgjrwater capacity and infrastructure, and they
had no clue what the future value of this wouldelven though the first proposal was on the
table. They needed more information but did nateha way to get it, which made the process
uncomfortable.

Mr. Farrelly stated he continued to have a probkgmen looking at the aerial of the current site,
in that there were acres upon acres of trees.aldehe worried about the very small area of trees
that would replace the trees removed for constvactiMr. Farrelly said he would like to see
efforts made to preserve more of the trees alrdagle to soften the feel of the development.

Ms. Ellis said all of the lovely trees on the hds as you go up Churton Street would be clear
cut for this project. She said she believed tlugeot was too large for the area.

Commissioner Lloyd said this project would be hhl size of the Town, and once built there
would be no place left to build anything else innfio She said for the future of the Town, they
needed to know exactly what they would get.

Commissioner Dancy agreed with Mr. Peterson ablogttiming of this project, noting there
were already major projects in progress around To®he said the true impacts of those were
no yet known, and they did not know what impacts thuge development would have.
Commissioner Dancy said if they approved this, Tlmevn and its planning staff could be
overwhelmed. She said it may even require thadiof additional staff.

Mr. Jones stated it was important that a developratthe entrance to the Town be a good fit.
He said he was not saying “no” to this project, believed that whatever project was allowed
there be a good fit.

d. Risk Analysis — What could future development lok like if this project is not
approved?



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 10 of 16

Mayor Stevens stated he liked the different optipngposed because it reduced the overall
residential density, but they would still need stablish very clear guidelines in the Master Plan.
He said they would still have the issue of a md@velopment, as well as its significance to the
Town.

Ms. Hauth said this project was really only threecps with three uses of property on four
current pieces of property: the Daniel Boone Vidlathe building previously an ice rink; the

Collins property, and, the Partin Mobile Home PaBhe said that organic growth was difficult
to replicate when the Town did not own the propamy could not sell it in small pieces. Ms.
Hauth said the Village and the ice rink were roygbD acres, currently zoned High Intensity
Commercial, and the owners could bring in a deafadée plan tomorrow to the Board of

Adjustment and receive approval for a shoppingerentt other permitted use. She said it would
not be easy because it was difficult to be thati§ijgeon 60 acres, but they were entitled to do
that.

Ms. Hauth said the Collins property had little iiyaroad frontage, although there was small
access. She said that was a large parcel of taméve such a small amount of access. Ms.
Hauth said that parcel would be very difficult tevelop if it was not developed in conjunction
with something that surrounded it and provided elnay access and connections. She said the
Partin property had access to an existing railsingsand that was all, and was a small parcel
compared to the whole.

Ms. Hauth said part of the question was do you wapian it all at once or do you want it to be
carved up over time. She said in this particuéaeg the likelihood of the Collins property being
any further divided without the construction of dsaor some subdivision process was almost
impossible, because there was so little road fgmtaMs. Hauth said that property needed to
attach to something surrounding it in order to tipett access, and with the rail crossing on its
entire eastern border the only option was the &gaton Churton Street.

Ms. Hauth said this property had a unique assemhlath unique opportunities and challenges
associated with it. She said that was one reasgnitwemained as it was now, particularly the
Collins property.

Mr. Farrelly said even if the design could gethe point where it looked attractive, there was
still the sense among some that it was still vargé and so would the impacts it would have on
the Town and Town resources. He said the develgreied a lot of risk as well, and there were
market forces they had to carefully assess. Mmelg said they would not be proposing this
development if they believed it was not viable. d4&l from that standpoint, the developer had a
vested interest in making sure the project wasessfal.

Mr. Farrelly stated that on the other hand, theettyer would not be as concerned with Town
impacts and how the Town had to deal with those sHid in some ways, he would like for
those concerns to to be better articulated.

Commissioner Gering said his question was in thte emat this project would bring in terms of
benefits to Hillsborough. He asked how the projeciuld make our citizens lives better.
Commissioner Gering said he did not see much bereefpect perhaps a better class of retail
which was not a compelling argument. He said tH&l not yet know the impact of the
Waterstone development, and were still dealing widtmpton Pointe. Commissioner Gering



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 11 of 16

wondered if all of that high intensity commerciahsvdeveloped at Daniel Boone Village, what
effect that would have on Oakdale Village, Waterstcand Hampton Pointe. He stated that the
market study for Hampton Pointe did not considez tmpacts of other retail around it.
Commissioner Gering said he saw that as a majorarsHillsborough, and did not see why this
project was compelling.

Mr. Farrelly wondered if there were some specifimgs offered by the signature pieces in the
form of public resources that would address sonteaifconcern.

Commissioner Gering said yes, which was why he susghested more and larger municipal
uses. He said the Town had the need to expanérmstof schools, public meeting and

performance space, fire and police, and adminiggapace. Commissioner Gering said those
would be compelling reasons to look more favoraidmythis project because it would make it

more attractive for everyone in Hillsborough.

Mayor Stevens agreed with Commissioner Geringngdtiere was an opportunity here to make
this development a destination or to fit it in witie overall destinations that the Town was for
visitors and those living here. He said so fagréhwas not enough of that offered by this
development.

Commissioner Gering said one of the attractionslidéborough was that it was a small town
and felt like a small town, and asked when woulstdp being a small town? He asked if the
density of this kind of development would createeav center of town, adding that unless you
had strong connectivity or something that convinked that it was well integrated with the rest
of the Town, then it would contribute to the lo$small town Hillsborough.

Ms. Vandemark said her concern was with the comialeaspect, noting that such pockets of
commercial activity would bring people off the irg&ate, but once they finished shopping they
would get back on the interstate and leave. Sitkitsavould not bring people downtown. Ms.
Vandemark said Waterstone would have a large amafucdmmercial, and asked what would
make this development different. She said shethenras a detriment to making Churton Street
as a more cohesive strip.

Ms. Ellis said they needed to remember that Foximaves approved but not yet planned, and the
same was true of Oakdale Village. She said theleets of these 1100 units would not be
shopping in town.

Mr. Remington said this development and Waterstaeee two disconnected areas with an
unwalkable strip in between. He said this develepimif done well, had the opportunity to
create a more continuous Hillsborough that provideohe connectivity between the two. Mr.
Remington said that area could become walkabl&eéodbwntown and it could tie other parts
together much more, which held potential positiic@ghe Town.

Mr. Farrelly agreed, adding it came back to hawsomge attractions that were unique and would
make people come and then stay for other activitlds said they needed to think of things that
had that uniqueness and were distinctive. Mr.dlgrsaid the scale at 700 residential units was
still big, but it was not 1200 as originally progos



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 12 of 16

Mr. Newton said comments had been made about hgvatd overwhelming the project was
and how quickly it would be developed, but Watenst@nd Oakdale Village were not being
developed quickly. He said as part of the Mastan Rhey could dictate phasing and how
quickly it unfolded.

Mr. Newton said another issue was what the betwetite Town would be. He said they had an
opportunity before them which may be lost if thewhodid not allow the development, leaving

the market forces to take care of what happenédetproperty. Mr. Newton said the benefits of
proceeding and working out the fine details with treveloper was that they would end up with
something much closer to what they wanted as opptmssomething that might be considered a
nightmare by some. He said assuming the develsgeted to work with the Town they may be

able to see some aspects of the Churton StreetdGoiPlan realized. Mr. Newton said the

reality was that the growth would happen regardlessthe question was would they work with

this developer or gamble that something much weadd happen.

Mr. Farrelly said it had been explained that thdli@® property had few opportunities for

development because of its lack of access, andlaglet! the property were not developed at
once would the opportunities to gain that accededie Ms. Hauth said if the pieces of property
were developed individually it would be much mornéficllt to assure the necessary cross
connections.

Mayor Stevens said he gathered that there wascamtine for the Town to do some planning
with this developer to develop a package that wopuékerve the small town character and sense
of community, and keep the whole of Hillsboroughaki He said this was a great opportunity,
and there was some risk if they did not that thia similar opportunity. Mayor Stevens said it
had to be done right.

Mr. Dye clarified that the planning process woud#ld some time, and the entire project would
not get developed all at one time or in a shoriogeof time, noting it would take a number of
years. He said this would be a long term partngeys that they would have a long term interest
in the property and the Town would have a long ter@rest in how it was developed. Mr. Dye
said they were not interested in building somettimag did not work or would not survive for
the long term.

Ms. Faherty said often you get the sense when yder e development that after passing
through stone gates you see a nice neighborhoddalbuhe facilities there were for those
residents only, such as the parks and playgrour@le said they were talking back and forth
about public areas and green space and connectavity believed that as they proceeded they
needed to decide whether they wanted that kindfeebhor whether they wanted to have a feel
that the development was a part of Hillsboroughretadl were welcome.

Mayor Stevens noted that the commercial areas diichecessarily have to be shopping areas,
but could have other kinds of businesses. Helsaiokelieved they wanted a community that was
inviting and open to the larger community. Maytev@ns suggested going back through the list
and identify any “deal breakers,” one of which aquee to be the number of residential units.
He added to the list that any community facilitsé®uld be open to the wider community.

Ms. Hauth suggested that the Board state theiepre€e for items on the list in order to give a
clear and uniform message to the applicant.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 13 of 16

Mayor Stevens suggested taking a straw poll byhgagiach item on the list: a “1” being you
absolutely agreed with it, a “2” indicating youdil it but were not sure, and a “3” being you did
not agree with it.

Mr. Farrelly said there were a lot of items on thist; and just voting to “reduce the number of
units” did not indicate how much they should beucztl.

Beth Trahos asked if there was some scenario wiherd own would support the density as
proposed in exchange for some specific amenitiesyas that considered a deal breaker. Ms.
Hauth asked if she was talking about 1100 dwellings. Ms. Trahos said yes, and her question
was if there was any scenario under which the Tosuid support that density.

Mr. Remington said that density was in the realnpao$sibility, but not without having some
substantial details of how that density would fittbe property and what it would look like. He
said with what they knew now, it answer would be (vay.”

Mayor Stevens said for 60% of the Town’s remainirager forever, the developer would have to
come up with something that would make the Towntwabadly. He asked what this Town
would want so badly that it was willing to give 60% of its remaining water supply.

Ms. Faherty asked what was the fewest number afihguwnits that would still make the project
profitable. Mr. Dye said 1100 units provided tteue that enabled them to provide much of the
items on the “wish list.” He said with a fewer npen of units, many of those items would
disappear. Mr. Dye for instance, the site desigph&br the school site had a parcel next to it for
reservation which could be sold at market value. sklid they could not just give that land away
for free and then take away a good number of resi@eunits, noting it would hurt them
financially. Mr. Dye said there was a balance tieat to be maintained.

Mr. Jones asked what method was used to determid@ units on this site. Mr. Dye responded
they had used past experience as well as the véline land, along with market indicators. He
said reducing the number of residential units wouwddjatively affect the amenities the Town
wanted.

Commissioner Lloyd stated not only was this projesing a significant amount of the water
supply, it was also using the available sewer a w#he cited the amenities Waterstone was
providing to the Town, amounting to over $2 milliontotal contributions. Commissioner Lloyd
said Waterstone was providing a water tower toease water pressure, they were donating
space for a civic center, and they were providpace for a police and possibly a fire substation.
She said this developer was saying they could nahdse kinds of things, but this was not a
town with a lot of money. Commissioner Lloyd satle did not want taxpayers to be
subsidizing this development. Mr. Peterson saithéfinancial analysis under the last scenario,
the Town would run a deficit for the first four ysa

Commissioner Lloyd said the Town could not affooddo that, and what the developer was
asking was for the Town to subsidize it. She samkss this development was going to
contribute in a big way to the Town, she was ndtimg to allow 1100 houses and a large
amount of the Town’s remaining water and sewer ciépa



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 14 of 16

Mr. Farrelly asked Mr. Peterson if they had calrdathe $2 million contribution from
Waterstone as a percentage of the entire develdpmaimg that might be a useful benchmark.
Mr. Peterson said they had not done that. Mr.éfgrsuggested that be done, noting it might
give the Boards a sense of what might be expedteliffarent levels of development for this
particular property. Mr. Peterson said there wadogdlimitations because they did not know
what Waterstone was paying for particular things.

Mr. Peterson said it was important to be as cledrspecific with the developer about what they
wanted and did not want as possible. He said & also important to remember that they were
not just talking to American Asset Corporation,timat if this project did not go forward there
would be some other developer coming forward inftiigre who would look back on the history
of this process as a reference.

Mr. Peterson reminded the Boards that Waterstodddieen five years, and it had been rejected
officially and unofficially numerous times beforewas approved. He said when you see a
development that was compelling enough and yowebedi it would add tangibly and intangibly
to the quality of life in town, enough to give upetwater resources that were extremely valuable,
you would be ready to take a chance on it.

Mr. Peterson said regarding the financial analyiis, first hurdle to cross was getting to the
point where you saw the possibilities the projeitéred, then the second hurdle was how to
work the financial negotiations to make it pay ifigelf. He said if they could get over the first
one, which was the hardest, there were ways to workhe second.

Mayor Stevens said there was huge opportunity reare,they could look to identify ways to

keep moving forward by defining what it was the Towanted. He said having some smart
growth in this area would be to the Town’s advaetagp they should look to build on that
opportunity. Mayor Stevens said the flip side hattwas that it was very important and they
should not vote for approval until they got someghihat was compelling for the Town.

Mr. Farrelly said a lot of intensity of feelingschbeen communicated tonight on certain topics,
and to go from this point to a consensus tonightild/dve impossible. He said they did need to
articulate a strong message of what they would defartable with as a starting point. Mr.
Farrelly said for instance, if they said that tlséypngly preferred 600 or 700 dwelling units, then
the developer would know that if they wanted tar@ase that they would have to come up with
some compensating features that made it attrafmivéhe Town. But, he said, at this stage it
was hard to get really specific, and he wanteddéhesloper to get creative and come back with
something to offer.

Mayor Stevens said there was a staff recommend#ietrproposed as a working number a cap
of 730 dwelling units with an opportunity for sonmnuses based on additional LEED
certification and how it was built into the mixedeu He asked if that seemed like a relatively
reasonable working number without being specifidayor Stevens said that number could be
1100 but something really special would have toffered in exchange.

Commissioner Lowen said he could be comfortablehwhat, but only with a phased
development.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 15 of 16

Ms. Ellis asked where they were going to get théewanoting they were in a drought condition
now and having 1100 units would place a strainha supply.

Mayor Stevens said according to the Strategic GroRfan, the Town could support 1900
additional residential units and 1.65 million squdeet of commercial space with its current
water supply. He said that model took into accawsrything that had been approved to this
point, even if it had not yet been developed. Rkterson noted those calculations had been
based on the most severe water restrictions, whashPhase V.

Mayor Stevens said that if you believed the 730 llilnge units was a good working number,
since some potential bonus was built in, then ywmukl vote “1”. If you had some reservation,
then vote “2”. If you disagreed with it, vote “3Mayor Stevens then called for a straw vote.

After the straw vote, Mayor Stevens stated it apgsbdhat 730 was a starting point, but the
Boards would still need convincing. He asked wdther issues it would be helpful to vote on.
Ms. Hauth asked if they wanted to say that regasdt# the number of dwelling units, that there
had to be a commitment at the Master Plan levelstane sort of sustainable development
required of all dwelling units. Mayor Stevens edllfor a straw vote, with “1” being yes, “2”
being maybe, and “3” being no. The majority votéd

Ms. Hauth noted that the dedication of the exisbafifields did not wholly meet the recreation
requirement. She said the applicant had requdkidthat dedication satisfy the recreation
requirement. It was noted that many of these isauggs interrelated, and it was not necessary to
go through each one individually since the devealdel heard all the comments made tonight.

Mr. Dye said they had taken note of the commemigyhd, and it was clear on some level what
was being asked. He said they now had to decidlevéds feasible for them to do it.

Mayor Stevens said certain individuals were adamaaout certain issues, but the Boards as a
whole may not necessarily be adamant about them.sditl it was not fair to the applicant to
send mixed signals, or to see these straw votésrasand fast votes. He noted that the votes
appeared to be about 50/50.

Mr. Farrelly said it was obvious they needed mqectics, and it was possible that some people
would move into the “yes” column if they could dsaw the development played out in a more
conceptual way, but others may not move.

Mr. Peterson said it would be helpful perhaps ® &enock up that tried to address or at least
paid attention to the issues noted on the listhwiasons as to why they could or could not
respond favorably to them. Ms. Trahos stated ttayld produce a mock up, adding they

wanted to work with the Town and answer all questio

Mayor Stevens said two points to take away frora theeting was that the project had not been
visualized enough, and even what they could vigaallas not compelling enough to determine
what it would contribute to the Town. He said svobvious they expected this project to be
way above average.



August 28, 2007 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: March 10, 2008
Page 16 of 16

e Next steps.
Ms. Hauth said they could schedule another worksbapview what the applicant resubmitted,
then determine whether or not to call a public imgar There was general agreement.

After some discussion, it was determined that f{hy@ieant could perhaps get back with more
information within 45 days.

ITEM #6:  Adjourn workshop.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Lowen, seconded byi@ssioner Dancy, the Boards moved
to adjourn the joint workshop by a vote of meetinyga vote of 5-0. The motion was declared
passed.

ITEM #7: Town Board Closed Session as authorized byG.S. 143-318.11(a)(5) -
Personnel matters — to receive update on the Assstt Town Manager
Selection Process.

Upon a motion by Commissioner Lowen, seconded by@ssioner Dancy, the Board moved

to enter into Closed Session for the purpose oéivetgy an update eon the Assistant Town

Manager selection process as authorized by G.S31831(a)(5) by a vote of 5-0. The motion

was declared passed.

ITEM #8: Adjourn.

Upon returning to Open Session, and upon a motioiCammissioner Lowen, seconded by
Commissioner Dancy, the Board moved to adjourmppt@&imately 9:49 PM by a vote of 5-0.
The motion was declared passed.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:49 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Mgt A Houbh

Margaret A. Hauth, Secretary



